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HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY

163-165 WEST BROAD STREET (HOUSE) HABS No. NJ-934

I. Location:

163-165 West Broad Street, Bridgeton, Cumberland County, New Jersey

1I. Present Use:

Vacant., Demolition included in contract awarded July 6, 1982.
Demolition is.to follow issuance of the notice to proceed.

III1. Significance:

In 1793 this site became the first Bridgeton Post Office and

thus is the location of the initial federal presence in Bridgeton.
The site was also the home of Eli Elmer of the prominent Elmer
family during this era. Eli Elmer was the first Postmaster and
served in this capacity at the above location until his death

in 1802. At that time the Post Office was relocated to the

house of the new Postmaster.

IV. Date-of Erection:

Circa 1763-1793, from references.

V. Historical Events and Persons Connected With The Structure:

The historical significance of the building to be demolished lies
with its ties to early Bridgeton and E1i Elmer. The building

is not architecturally unique within the dlStrlCt The site is
‘not of known archeological significance.

The first Post Office was established in Bridgeton on March 20, 1793

at 183-165 West Broad Street. This site is several blocks west:

of the center of town. Prior to 1793 mail delivery relied on private -
carriers, because stage lines to and from Bridgeton made no provision
for mail. Col. Eli Elmer was the first Postmaster and his office

was kept in his- house. His home address was 161 Broad Street and

was part of the existing structure at 163-165 (West) Broad Street.
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Appareﬁtly, this portion of the structure was destroyed by

- fire and some rebuilding followed. The structure is. located

several doors west of the historic Giles House. Eli Elmer
continued in his capacity as Postmaster until his death in
1802, When he died the Post Office was moved to the residence
of the new Postmaster, John Soulard, on the south side of
Broad Street.

Mail was dispatched from Bridgeton-West (as it was also known,
to separate it from Bridgeton-East, now the City of Rahway)

- once per week via Salem, Mall was transported in a sulky. By

1803, a mail route was established via Deerfield to Port
Elizabeth and Cape May. By 1816, mail was carried daily to
and from Philadelphia. In 1804, the mall carriers were
Benaiah Parvin and son.

Col. Eli Elmer was a member of one of the most important

families in the early stages of Bridgeton's history. Various
members of the Elmer family have held many important positions

in Bridgeton. Eli served as an important military leader

and was elected to the Assembly in 1788 and 1789 and the

Council in 1795. He was sheriff from 1784 to 1787 and was

active in the erection of the Presbyterian Church in Bridgeton.
In 1789 he was appointed first collector of the port of _
Bridgeton and held this office until his death in 1802. His
military careexy included a lieutenancy in the "Westemm Company

of Artillery" of State troops and paymaster. He was present

at the surrender of Cornwallis. Later in life he held a position:
of Colonel in the militia. Eli Elmer was also a member of the '
State Convention in Trenton on 1787, which ratified the
Constitution of the United States.

Broad Street is the oldest street in Bridgeton. 1In the

mid-18th century it was laid out 100 feet wide. Broad Street
was also known ds Main Street and High Street. It is likely
that Ebenezer Miller laid out Broad Street like Main Street

of Greenwich, but there is no record of either. The road

was virtually impassable below the courthouse due to extensive
gullying and steep gradient. It was officially declared a
highway early in its history to aid in its maintenance. George -
Burgin is credited with making and keeping the road passable
below the .courthouse around 1802.
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The Broad Street Bridge was built in 1869. Today, Broad Street
‘ serves as State Route #49, and is the major east-west artery in
the city.

The structure has always maintained a residential use. The
U.S. Government purchased the house on May 21, 1981 from
DBA Realty. DBA owned the building for just over one vear,.

During that time it was still used as a residence although in
deterlorated condition.

VI. Architectural Information:

The federal style detached house is of a common design. It

is 2 stories with a basement and attic. 1t has clapboard

siding . The front facade has a small portico which does not

date back to the original construction. The wooden columns

of the portico are of the Tuscan order and support a plain
entablature. The columns are set on a concrete slab.

The roof is a gable design with asphalt shingles. The wooden

frame windows are six over six double-hung, except in the attic, where they are -

' 4/4 The chimney is situated in the center of the structure.

The basement interior walls are concrete
. and fieldstone. The small two-family house sits on a lot of
about 150 ft. by 60 ft.

Vii. Floor Plans:

Attached.
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